
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 
 THE CITY OF BURNET 

 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Council Meeting will be held by the governing 
body of the City of Burnet on the 14th day of December, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. in Council 
Chambers, located at the Burnet Municipal Airport, 2402 S. Water Street, Burnet, Tx.  
 
This notice is posted pursuant to the Texas Government Code, Chapter §551-Open 
Meetings. 
 
The following subjects will be discussed, to-wit: 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
INVOCATION:  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:   
 
PLEDGE TO TEXAS FLAG: 
 
1. SPECIAL REPORTS/RECOGNITION:  None. 
  
2. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:  

 
(All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory 
by the Council and will be enacted with one motion. There will be no separate discussion 
of these items unless a Council Member, staff member or citizen requests removal of the 
item from the consent agenda for the purpose of discussion. For removal of an item, a 
request must be made to the Council when the Consent Agenda is opened for Council 
Action.)  
 
 2.1) Approval of the November 16th, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
3.  PUBLIC HEARING:  
 

3.1) Public Hearing: The City Council of the City of Burnet shall conduct a public 
hearing to receive testimony and comments from members of the public on the merits 
of a request to amend the City’s Future Land Use Map for property located at 1001 N 



Hill Street (Legal Description: BEING LOTS TEN, ELEVEN AND TWELVE, IN THE 
KINCHELOE ADDITION) from its current designation of “Residential” to a designation 
of “Commercial”.: L. Kimbler  
 
3.2) Public Hearing: The City Council of the City of Burnet shall conduct a public 
hearing to receive testimony and comments from members of the public on the merits 
of a request to rezone property located 1001 N Hill Street (Legal Description: BEING 
LOTS TEN, ELEVEN AND TWELVE, IN THE KINCHELOE ADDITION). The request 
is to rezone the property from its present designation of Single-Family Residential – 
District “R-1” to a designation of Light Commercial – District “C-1” with a conditional 
use permit for “Clinic and Safety Services”. L. Kimbler 
 

4. ACTION ITEMS: 

4.1) Discuss and consider action: Authorize the Fire Department to purchase a Ford 
F350 Type 1 Ambulance from Frazier Ambulance: M. Ingram 
 
4.2) Discuss and consider action: Authorization to proceed with submittal of an 
application for a FEMA  SAFER Grant (Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency 
Response): M. Ingram 
 

 4.3) Discuss and consider action: Appoint members to the Burnet Board of Adjustments:  
 K. Dix 

 
 4.4) Discuss and consider action: Request creation of a program to assist citizens 
who are in violation of the property maintenance code due to physical and/or financial 
limitations: P. Thurman 
 
4.5) Discuss and consider action: Request for approval of the purchase of a Camel 
Combo unit from Patterson Equipment through the TML BuyBoard: A. Burdell  
 
4.6) Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL, OF THE 
CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 
PROVIDER(S) SELECTION (GRANT WRITER) FOR TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF 
HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS (TDHCA) COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT-CORONAVIRUS (CDBG-CV) COMMUNITY RESILIENCY 
PROJECT (CRP): D. Vaughn 
 
4.7) Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL, OF THE 
CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, REJECTING ALL STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS 
(RFQ2021-03) FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICE (ENGINEERING/ARCHITECTURAL) 
FOR TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS (TDHCA) 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-CORONAVIRUS (CDBG-CV) 
COMMUNITY RESILIENCY PROJECT (CRP); AND AUTHORIZE AND DIRECT THE 
CITY MANAGER TO COORDINATE THE SELECTION PROCESS IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH TDHCS CDBG-CV REQUIREMENTS: D. Vaughn 



 
4.8) Discuss and consider action: Award of Street Paving Project Bid: M. Miller 
 
4.9) Discuss and consider action: A First Amendment to the Interlocal Agreement 
between Burnet Consolidated Independent School District and the City of Burnet for 
School Resource Officers: D. Vaughn 
 
4.10) Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
BURNET, TEXAS ACCEPTING A PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF REAL 
PROPERTY LOCATE NORTH OF THE CITY LIMITS AND WEST OF US ROUTE 
281, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS A 69.275-ACRE TRACT OF 
LAND OUT OF JOHN HAMILTON SURVEY, NO. 1, ABSTRACT NO 405, THE 
THOMAS ALLEY SURVEY NO. 410, ABSTRACT NO. 35, AND THE JOSE MARIA 
MUSQUEZ SURVEY NO. 1, ABSTRACT NO. 581, BURNET COUNTY, TEXAS; AND 
AUTHORIZING THE INITIATION OF PROCEEDINGS TO ANNEX THE REAL 
PROPERTY: H. Erkan 
 
4.11) Discuss and consider action: FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF BURNET, TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2012-09 AND 
THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF THE CITY OF BURNET BY ASSIGNING A 
DESIGNATION OF “COMMERCIAL” FOR THE PROPERTY AT 1001 NORTH HILL 
STREET (LEGAL DESCRIPTION: BEING LOTS TEN, ELEVEN AND TWELVE, IN 
THE KINCHELOE ADDITION)”; PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE: L. Kimbler 
 
4.12) Discuss and consider action: FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF BURNET, TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2021-01 AND 
THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY BY ASSIGNING THE PROPERTY 
DESCRIBED AS 1001 NORTH HILL STREET (LEGAL DESCRIPTION: BEING LOTS 
TEN, ELEVEN AND TWELVE, IN THE KINCHELOE ADDITION). WITH LIGHT 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT “C-1” WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR “CLINIC 
AND SAFETY SERVICES; PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE: L. Kimbler 
 
4.13) Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, APPROVING THE “FINAL PLAT” OF THE 
CROSSINGS AT 281 SUBDIVISION, A PROPOSED 2-LOT COMMERCIAL 
SUBDIVISION CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 13.51 ACRES: L. Kimbler  
 
4.14) Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF A PUBLIC 
UTILITY EASEMENT FROM H-E-B LOCATED NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF 
EAST POLK STREET AND SOUTH SILVER STREET: H. Erkan 
 



4.15) Discuss and consider action: Authorize staff to enter into a vendor agreement 
with Opportunities for Williamson and  Burnet Counties (OWBC) for the purpose of a 
Low Income Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP): D. Vaughn 
 
4.16) Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 
AGREEMENT WITH THE FIRM FREESE AND NICHOLS TO PROVIDE 
PROFESSIONAL PLANNING SERVICES RELATED TO CREATING A NEW 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR THE CITY OF BURNET: D. Vaughn 
 
4.17) Discuss and consider action: FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE 
AMENDING CITY OF BURNET CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 118 
(ENTITLED “ZONING”) FOR THE PURPOSE OF CLARIFYING THAT 
RESIDENTIAL AND MULTIFAMILY USES ARE NOT ALLOWED IN LIGHT 
COMMERCIAL - DISTRICT “C-1”; PROVIDING FOR PENALTY; PROVIDING 
CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; PROVIDING FOR 
PUBLICATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. H. Erkan  
 

5.  REQUESTS FROM COUNCIL FOR FUTURE REPORTS: In accordance with 
Resolution R2020-28 councilmembers may request the City Manager to prepare and 
present future report on matters of public interest.           

6. ADJOURN:  
     
         Dated this the 10th day of December 2021 
 

           CITY OF BURNET 
CRISTA GOBLE BROMLEY, MAYOR 

 
I, the undersigned authority, do hereby certify that the above NOTICE OF MEETING of 
the governing body of the above named City, BURNET, is a true and correct copy of said 
NOTICE and that I posted a true and correct copy of said NOTICE on the bulletin board, 
in the City Hall of said City, BURNET, TEXAS, a place convenient and readily accessible 
to the general public at all times, and said NOTICE was posted on December 10, 2021 at 
or before 6 o’clock p.m. and remained posted continuously for at least 72 hours 
preceding the scheduled time of said Meeting. 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
                                                      Kelly Dix, City Secretary 

 
NOTICE OF ASSISTANCE AT THE PUBLIC MEETINGS: 
The City Council Chamber is wheelchair accessible. Persons with disabilities who plan to 
attend this meeting and who may need auxiliary aids or services, such as interpreters for 
persons who are deaf or hearing impaired, readers, or large print, are requested to 
contact the City Secretary’s office (512.756.6093) at least two working days prior to the 



meeting. Requests for information may be faxed to the City Secretary at 512.756.8560. 
 
RIGHT TO ENTER INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
The City Council for the City of Burnet reserves the right to adjourn into executive 
session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed 
above, as authorized by Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with 
Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations about 
Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about 
Security Devices) and 551.087 (Economic Development). 



STATE OF TEXAS  {}       
COUNTY OF BURNET {}    
CITY OF BURNET  {} 
 
On this the 16th day of November, 2021, the City Council of the City of Burnet convened in Special Session, at 
6:00 p.m. at the Burnet Community Center, 401 E. Jackson Street, Burnet, TX thereof with the following members 
present, to-wit: 
Mayor     Crista Goble Bromley  
Council Members Ricky Langley, Joyce Laudenschlager, Philip Thurman, Cindia Talamantez  
Absent Danny Lester, Mary Jane Shanes 
City Manager   David Vaughn 
City Secretary   Kelly Dix 
Guests: Patricia Langford, Alan Burdell, Brian Lee, Mark Miller, Tony Nash, Leslie Kimbler, Jacob Thomas, 
Andrew Scott, Kelli Sames, Dan Brouillette 
Call to Order: Mayor Bromley called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
INVOCATION:  Led by Mayor Bromley 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  Led by Council Member Philip Thurman 
PLEDGE TO TEXAS FLAG: Led by Council Member Philip Thurman 
SPECIAL REPORTS/RECOGNITION: None. 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:  
(All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory by the Council and will 
be enacted with one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Council Member, staff 
member or citizen requests removal of the item from the consent agenda for the purpose of discussion. For 
removal of an item, a request must be made to the Council when the Consent Agenda is opened for Council 
Action.) 
Approval of the October 26th, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes: Council Member Joyce 
Laudenschlager moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Council Member Cindia Talamantez 
seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
PUBLIC HEARING:  
Public Hearing: The City Council of the City of Burnet will conduct a public hearing to receive public testimony 
and comments on the merits of a proposed “Preliminary Plat” for 18.79 acres out of the Eugenio Perez Survey, 
No. 41, Abs., No. 672. The proposed “Preliminary Plat” will establish Delaware Springs Subdivision, Section 19, 
Phases 3 and 4, consisting of 43 residential lots: L. Kimbler : Mayor Bromley opened the public hearing and 
asked if anyone was interested in speaking, if so to approach the podium. There being no one wishing to speak, 
Mayor Bromley closed the public hearing. 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: City Manager David Vaughn requested the Executive Session be moved to the 
beginning of the meeting to accommodate the City Attorney. Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager moved to 
convene to Executive Session at 6:04 p.m. Council Member Philip Thurman seconded. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
Executive Session: Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sec. 551.071 the City Council of the City of Burnet shall 
convene in executive session to consult with the City Attorney pertaining to a proposed waterline construction 
agreement with The Simons Group of Texas Builders LLC: D. Vaughn. 
RECONVENE TO REGULAR SESSION FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager 
moved to re-convene to Regular Session at 6:34 p.m. Council Member Cindia Talamantez seconded. The 
motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: Direction to staff regarding the proposed water line construction agreement with The 
Simons Group of Texas Builders LLC: D. Vaughn: Council Member Philip Thurman made a motion to suspend 
the negotiations until the criminal charges at issue with the other party are concluded. Council Member Cindia 
Talamantez seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
ACTION ITEMS: 
Discuss and consider action: Discuss and consider action: Approval and authorization to execute an Interlocal 
Agreement to participate in the Burnet County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update: D. Vaughn: Council Member 



Philip Thurman moved to authorize and approve the execution of an interlocal agreement to participate in the 
Burnet County Hazardous Mitigation Plan Update as presented. Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager 
seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF BURNET, TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2021-01 AND THE OFFICIAL ZONING 
MAP OF THE CITY BY ASSIGNING THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS 4313 S HIGHWAY 281 (LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 52.522 ACRES INSIDE CITY, PART OF 285.179 ACRES TRACT, OUT OF THE 
WASHINGTON ANDERSON SURVEY NO. 10, ABS. NO. 29) WITH MEDIUM COMMERCIAL – 
DISTRICT “C-2” CLASSIFICATION; PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE: L Kimbler: Council Member Cindia 
Talamantez moved to approve and adopt Ordinance 2021-42 as presented. Council Member Ricky Langley 
seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF BURNET, TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2021-01 AND THE OFFICIAL ZONING 
MAP OF THE CITY BY ASSIGNING THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS 810 EAST LEAGUE STREET 
(LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 0.151 ACRE TRACT, OUT OF THE JOHN HAMILTON SURVEY NO. 1, 
ABSTRACT NO.405) WITH SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL – DISTRICT “R-1” CLASSIFICATION; 
PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE: L Kimbler: Council Member Philip Thurman moved to approve and adopt Ordinance 2021-
43 as presented. Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: SECOND AND FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF BURNET, TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2021-01 AND THE OFFICIAL ZONING 
MAP OF THE CITY BY ASSIGNING THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS 812 EAST LEAGUE STREET 
(LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 0.151 ACRE TRACT, OUT OF THE JOHN HAMILTON SURVEY NO. 1, 
ABSTRACT NO.405 AND BEING A PORTION OF BLOCK NO 8, PETER KERR DONATION) WITH 
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL – DISTRICT “R-1” CLASSIFICATION; PROVIDING A REPEALER 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE: L 
Kimbler: Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager moved to approve and adopt Ordinance 2021-44 as presented. 
Council Member Cindia Talamantez seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: Authorization and approval to purchase a Cues CCTV High Cube E550 16-foot Box 
Van from CLS Equipment Inc. A. Burdell: Council Member Philip Thurman moved to approve and authorize the 
purchase of the Cues CCTV High Cube E550 16-foot Box Van from CLS Equipment Inc., as presented. Council 
Member Joyce Laudenschlager seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS, CONDITIONALLY APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY PLAT ESTABLISHING DELAWARE 
SPRINGS SUBDIVISION, SECTION 19, PHASES 3 AND 4, CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 43 
RESIDENTIAL LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 18.79 ACRES OUT OF THE EUGENIO PEREZ SURVEY, 
NO. 41, ABS. NO. 672: L. Kimbler: Mayor Bromley informed all present that Council Member Ricky Langley 
had filed an Affidavit of Conflict of Interest with the City Secretary and abstained from the vote. Council Member 
Philip Thurman moved to approve Resolution R2021-56 as presented. Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager 
seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS, APPROVING THE “FINAL PLAT” OF PEPPER MILL SUBDIVISION, PHASE THREE, A 
PROPOSED 32-LOT RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 8.44 ACRES: L. 
Kimbler: Council Member Ricky Langley moved to approve Resolution No. R2021-57 as presented. Council 
Member Joyce Laudenschlager seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A VARIANCE TO THE TECHNICAL CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS SECTION 
210 STREET DESIGN CRITERIA AND SECTION 290 STREET LIGHT REQUIREMENT FOR EAGLE’S 
NEST, SECTION III, A 13 LOT RESIDENTIAL SUBDIVISION: L. Kimbler: Council Member Joyce 
Laudenschlager moved to approve Resolution No. R2021-58 as presented. Council Member Ricky Langley 
seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 



 
 

Discuss and consider action: A contract with Austin Turf and Tractor for equipment purchases for Delaware 
Springs Golf Course: T. Nash: Council Member Cindia Talamantez moved to approve the contract with Austin 
Turf and Tractor for equipment purchase as presented. Council Member Philip Thurman seconded. The motion 
carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: Proposal for Professional Engineering Services with KSA Engineers for a new box 
hangar: A. Field: Council Member Ricky Langley moved to approve the proposal for Professional Engineering 
Services with KSA Engineers for a new box hangar as presented. Council Member Cindia Talamantez seconded. 
The motion carried unanimously.  
Discuss and consider action: Authorization to hire a full time City Engineer: D. Vaughn: Council Member Ricky 
Langley moved to approve and authorize the hiring of a full time City Engineer. Council Member Cindia 
Talamantez seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: Direction to City staff pertaining to a possible amendment to the zoning code 
increasing the minimum lot width in the single-family residential 1 – District “R-1”: D. Vaughn: Council Member 
Ricky Langley move to approve the amendment to the zoning code increasing the minimum lot width in the 
single-family residential 1 – District “R-1”, as presented. Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager seconded. The 
motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS, ASSIGNING A MUNICIPAL COURT ASSOCIATE JUDGE TO SERVE IN THE ABSENCE OF THE 
PRESIDING JUDGE: H. Erkan, Jr.: Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager moved to approve Resolution No. 
R2021-59 appointing the Honorable Roxanne Nelson as Associate Judge as presented. Council Member Philip 
Thurman seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: Request for the Police Department to pursue and accept a National Rifle Association 
(NRA) 2021/2022 Grant for department equipment and/or programs: B. Lee: Council Member Philip Thurman 
moved to approve and authorize the Police Department to pursue and accept a National Rifle Association (NRA) 
2021/2022 Grant for department equipment and/or programs as presented. Council Member Ricky Langley 
seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF VOTES CAST BY THE CITY COUNCIL, OF THE CITY 
OF BURNET, TO ELECT DIRECTORS FOR THE BURNET CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT FOR THE 
YEAR 2022-2023: K. Dix: Mayor Crista Goble Bromley moved to approve Resolution No. R2021-60 casting 
one hundred and thirty one (131) votes for Philip Thurman as presented. Council Member Ricky Langley 
seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 
Discuss and consider action: Authorization to proceed with the Texas Community Resiliency Program: D. 
Vaughn: Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager moved to approve and authorize staff to proceed with the Texas 
Community Resiliency Program as presented. Council Member Cindia Talamantez seconded. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
REQUESTS FROM COUNCIL FOR FUTURE REPORTS: In accordance with Resolution R2020-28 
councilmembers may request the City Manager to prepare and present future report on matters of public interest: 
None. 
ADJOURN: There being no further business a motion to adjourn was made by Council Member Cindia 
Talamantez at 7:39 p.m. Seconded by Council Member Joyce Laudenschlager. The motion carried unanimously. 
               
    
          ___________________________ 
          Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor  
ATTEST:  
 
     
_______________________ 
Kelly Dix, City Secretary  



 

 

 
Development Services 

 
ITEM 3.1 
Leslie Kimbler 
Interim Planner I 
512-715-3206 
lkimbler@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
Meeting Date: December 14, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Public Hearing: The City Council of the City of Burnet shall conduct a 

public hearing to receive testimony and comments from members of the 
public on the merits of a request to amend the City’s Future Land Use Map 
for property located at 1001 N Hill Street (Legal Description: BEING LOTS 
TEN, ELEVEN AND TWELVE, IN THE KINCHELOE ADDITION) from its 
current designation of “Residential” to a designation of “Commercial”.: L. 
Kimbler  

 
Background: This property is located near the intersection of North Hill Street and East 

Graves Street (see Exhibit A).  The property is the site of the Sunshine 
House, also known as the Hill Country Children’s Advocacy Center.  The 
center is a resource for children who are victims of crimes.  The center 
provides forensic interviewing and counseling services.  

  
 The applicant is seeking the requested amendment to the FLUM to obtain 

a zoning change to allow for the development of a new building.  They 
have outgrown their current building and will be utilizing a vacant portion 
of their property to expand their current operations. The applicant is 
requesting a change from Single Family Residential – District “R-1” to 
Light Commercial – District “C-1” with a conditional use permit for “Clinic 
and Safety Services”. 

 
The City’s Future Land Use Map for this property is designated as 
Residential and the requested Future Land Use amendment must be 
approved before the zoning change request can be approved (next item 
on the agenda).   

  
Staff Analysis: The property is currently an empty lot, measuring approximately 0.75 of 

an acre.  This is large enough for the expected expansion of the 
applicant’s building.   

 
The Future Land Use Map calls for the subject tract to be Residential   This 
tract would be bounded by other Future Land Uses of Residential on the 
west and south sides.  The property would be bounded to the north and 
east by a Future Land Use designation of Government (see Exhibit B).   

  
Public Notification: A Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Burnet Bulletin on 

December 8, 2021, and written notices were mailed to twelve (12) 
surrounding property owners within 200 feet of the subject property.  



 

 During the Planning and Zoning’s Public Hearing, one neighboring citizen 
did express his concerns and requested further information on the intent 
of the project. The citizen did state that, at this moment, he did not oppose 
or support the request.  No further responses in favor or opposition have 
been received at this time.   

P&Z Report: P&Z conducted a scheduled public hearing and recommended approval 
of the requested Future Land Use amendment on December 6, 2021. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Exhibit “A” 
Location & Current Zoning Map 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Exhibit “B” 
Future Land Use Map 

 

 
 
 
 
 

    
Government Commercial Residential Industrial 

 



Public Hearing

The City Council of the City of Burnet shall conduct a public hearing to

receive testimony and comments from members of the public on the merits

of a request to amend the City’s Future Land Use Map for property located

at 1001 N Hill Street (Legal Description: BEING LOTS TEN, ELEVEN AND

TWELVE, IN THE KINCHELOE ADDITION) from its current designation of

“Residential” to a designation of “Commercial”.



Public Hearing
Information:
 Current FLUM:

Residential
 Requested FLUM:

Commercial

 Property is owned by the Hill Country
Children’s Advocacy Center – HC CAC is a
resource for children who are victims of
crimes

 HC CAC is seeking to expand their current
operations

 HC CAC requesting rezone from R-1 to C-1
with CUP for “Clinic and Safety Services”



Government Commercial Residential Open Space

Public Hearing
Future Land Use Map:

North South East West

Zoning “C-2” “R-1” “R-1” “R-1”
FLUM Government Residential Government Residential

Land Use Clinic and
Safety
Service

Single-Family
Residential

Church Storage Units

The City’s Future Land Use Plan for this property is 
designated as Residential and the requested Future 
Land Use amendment must be approved before the 

zoning change request can be approved. 



Action Item
Public Notification:

• Written notices were mailed to 12
surrounding property owners.

• One citizen spoke at P&Z – did not oppose
or support, but did request further
information

P&Z recommended approval of the
requested FLUM amendment on
December 6, 2021



Public Hearing

PUBLIC HEARING



 

 

 
Development Services 

 
ITEM 3.2 
Leslie Kimbler 
Interim Planner I 
512-715-3206 
lkimbler@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
Meeting Date: December 14, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Public Hearing: The City Council of the City of Burnet shall conduct a 

public hearing to receive testimony and comments from members of 
the public on the merits of a request to rezone property located 1001 N 
Hill Street (Legal Description: BEING LOTS TEN, ELEVEN AND 
TWELVE, IN THE KINCHELOE ADDITION). The request is to rezone 
the property from its present designation of Single-Family Residential 
– District “R-1” to a designation of Light Commercial – District “C-1” 
with a conditional use permit for “Clinic and Safety Services”.   L. 
Kimbler 

 
Background: This property is located near the intersection of North Hill and East 

Graves Street.  The property is the site of the Sunshine House, also 
known as the Hill Country Children’s Advocacy Center.  The Center is 
a resource for children who are victims of crimes. The Center provides 
forensic interviewing and counseling services.  

  
Information: The applicant is seeking the requested zoning to allow for the 

development of a new building.  They have outgrown their current 
building and will be utilizing a vacant portion of their property to expand 
their current operations.  The applicant is requesting a change from 
Single Family Residential- District “R-1” to Light Commercial- District 
“C-1” with a Conditional Use Permit for “Clinic and Safety Services”.  

 
Staff Analysis: The Future Land Use Map (Exhibit B) designation for the area is 

Commercial.  The item prior to this item on the agenda is a request to 
amend the City’s Future Land Use Map. If approved Light Commercial 
– District “C-1” would be appropriate for this area. 
Properties adjacent to the subject property are zoned as follows: 

 
 North South East  West 
Zoning “C-2” “R-1” “R-1” “R-1” 
FLUM Government Residential Government Residential 



 

Land Use Safety Services 
Office 

Residential Church Multi-Family 

  
Public Notification: A Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Burnet Bulletin on 

December 8, 2021, and written notices were mailed to twelve (12) 
surrounding property owners within 200 feet of the subject property. 
There have been zero responses in favor and zero responses in 
opposition. 

P&Z Report: P&Z conducted a scheduled public hearing and recommended 
approval of the requested zone change on December 6, 2021. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Exhibit “A” 
Location & Current Zoning Map 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 

Exhibit “B” 
Future Land Use Map 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    
Government Commercial Residential Industrial 



Public Hearing

The City Council of the City of Burnet shall conduct a public hearing to

receive testimony and comments from members of the public on the merits

of a request to rezone property located 1001 N Hill Street (Legal

Description: BEING LOTS TEN, ELEVEN AND TWELVE, IN THE

KINCHELOE ADDITION). The request is to rezone the property from its

present designation of Single-Family Residential – District “R-1” to a

designation of Light Commercial – District “C-1” with a conditional use

permit for “Clinic and Safety Services”.



Public Hearing
Information:

 Current Zoning:
Single-Family Residential – “R-1”

 Requested Zoning:
Light Commercial – District “C-1” with
Conditional Use permit to allow “Clinic
and Safety Services”

 Allow for the expansion of the Hill
Country Children’s Advocacy Center
where they provide forensic
interviewing, counseling and other
safety services to children who were
victims of crime



Government Commercial Residential Open Space

Public Hearing
Future Land Use Map:

North South East West

Zoning “C-2” “R-1” “R-1” “R-1”
FLUM Government Residential Government Residential

Land Use Safety
Services
Office

Single-Family
Residential

Church Multi-Family

Request for FLUM amendment would allow for the 
proposed Light Commercial – District “C-1” zoning 

to be appropriate for this area.



Public Hearing
Public Notification:

• Written notices were mailed to
12 surrounding property owners

• No responses in support or
opposition have been received

P&Z conducted a scheduled public
hearing and recommended approval of
the requested zone change on
December 6, 2021.



Public Hearing

PUBLIC HEARING



 
 

 
Development Services 

 
ITEM 3.3 
 
Habib Erkan Jr. 
Assistant City Manager 
512-715-3201 
herkan@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
Meeting Date:  December 14, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Public Hearing: The City Council of the City of Burnet, Texas 

shall hold a public hearing to receive testimony and comments 
from members of the public on the merits of a proposed 
amendment to the City of Burnet’s Code of Ordinances 
Chapter 118 (Entitled “Zoning”) Section 118-41 (Entitled 
“Light Commercial – District C-1”). H. Erkan 

  
Background: City Council, by adoption of City Code Sec. 118-45, 

established the Light Commercial – District “C-1”.  Subsection 
118-45(a) reads as follows: 

 
(a) Purpose and permitted uses. This district allows a mix of commercial uses including, retail, 

office, light commercial, and similar uses excluding residential and multifamily. This 
district allows the retail sale of goods and products (in the following listed use areas) to 
which value has been added onsite, including those uses permitted in the "NC" 
neighborhood commercial district, sales of goods and services outside of the primary 
structure as customary with the uses specifically listed, and the following:  

 
   Please note that the first sentence of Sec. 110-45(a) states 

uses permitted in the district “[excludes] residential and 
multifamily”.  The second sentience in the subsection provides 
permitted uses in the district “[includes] those uses permitted 
in the NC neighborhood commercial district.  The list of uses 
permitted in the NC neighborhood commercial district 
exposes the conflict as follows: 

 
Sec. 118-44. Neighborhood commercial—District "NC". 

(a) This district allows for a variety of commercial uses that will serve as a transitional zone between 
residential and less intense commercial uses. Permitted uses will be those of a less intense 
nature that will aesthetically blend with the residential character of the area while permitting 
commercial enterprises. These uses will include accountants, barber or beauty shops, and the 
following:  

(1) Parks and playgrounds.  
(2) Community residential facilities with eight or fewer persons.  
(3) Day-care homes with 12 or fewer children.  
(4) Single-family dwellings.  
(5) Residential accessory buildings and uses.  
(6) Churches and temples.  
(7) Credit union offices.  



(8) Doctor or dental offices.  
(9) Bed and breakfast.  
(10) Fire stations.  
(11) Libraries.  
(12) Public and private schools and colleges.  
(13) Duplexes.  
(14) Triplex and four-plex multifamily.  
(15) Convents and monasteries.  
(16) Small insurance offices.  
(17) Lawyer's offices.  
(18) Optician or optometrist offices.  
(19) Public parking areas.  
(20) Real estate offices.  
(21) Uses as determined by the commission and the council which are closely related 

and similar to those listed and that are not likely to create any more offensive noise, 
vibration, dust, heat, smoke, odor, glare, or other objectionable influences than the 
minimum amount normally resulting from listed uses permitted.  

 
Information: This ordinance resolves the ambiguity in City Code Sec. 118-

45(a) by inserting a textural change to the code clarifying 
Council’s intent that in Light Commercial – District “C-1” "NC" 
neighborhood commercial district uses are allowed, except 
single family dwellings, residential accessory buildings and 
uses, duplex, triplex or fourplex or multifamily uses. 

  
Fiscal Impact No fiscal impact is anticipated. 
 
Recommendation: Conduct Public Hearing 



 
 

 
Fire Department 

 

 
ITEM 4.1 
 
Mark Ingram 
City Manager 
512-756-2662 
dmingram@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  December 14, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: Authorize the Fire Department 

to purchase a Ford F350 Type 1 Ambulance from Frazier 
Ambulance: M. Ingram 

 
Background: Purchase budgeted in the FY2021-2022 Budget 
  
Information: The Burnet Fire Department budgeted for the replacement of 

the current Med 1 Ambulance for fiscal year 2021-2011. Due 
to industry wide slow downs, the estimated date of delivery for 
the new ambulance will be September 2022 if ordered now.  

  
Fiscal Impact: The estimated purchase price for the new ambulance is 

$210,000.00. 
 

Recommendation: Authorization to proceed with the purchase of the Ford F350, 
Type 1 Ambulance from Frazier Ambulance as presented. 



 
 

 
Fire Department 

 

 
ITEM 4.2 
 
Mark Ingram 
City Manager 
5112-756-2662 
mingram@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  December 14, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: Authorization to proceed with 

submittal of an application for a FEMA  SAFER Grant (Staffing 
for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response): M. Ingram  

 
Background:  
  
Information: The Fire Department submittal would request grant funding 

for three Paramedic Firefighters and three EMT Firefighters. 
The SAFER grant would pay 75% of the  six positions salaries 
for the first and second year of the grant. The third year the 
grant would pay 35% of the salaries for the positions. If 
awarded, the grant funding would be implemented for fiscal 
year 2022-2023 allowing staff to budget for the salary savings.  

 
 This grant will provide significant salary cost savings for the 

Burnet Fire Department for the next three years. 
  
Fiscal Impact: The estimated salary expense that would need to be 

budgeted for fiscal year 2022-2023 for the six positions would 
be approximately $84,688.00. The same amount would be 
budgeted for fiscal year 2023-2024 and fiscal year 2024-2026 
would need to budget for approximately $111,789.00 for the 
six positions. 
 

Recommendation: To be determined by Council 



 

 

 
 

 
Administration 

 

 
ITEM 4.3 
 
Kelly Dix 
City Secretary 
(512)-756-6093 ext. 3209 
kdix@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 

Meeting Date:  December 14, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action:  Appoint members to the Burnet 

Board of Adjustments: K. Dix 
 
Background: The Board of Adjustments is a board of the City with five 

members and two alternates.  
 
The Board is established by ordinance consistent with State 
Code 211.008. The Board has the power to hear and determine 
appeals concerning the refusal of building permits, appeals 
resulting from administrative decisions and to permit exception, 
or variation from zoning regulations.  
 

Information: There are four members due to complete their term on the Board 
of Adjustments as follows: 

 
 Joy Taylor 
 Kim Winkler 
 Paul Shell 
 Cesar E. Arreaza 
 
 All four have expressed a desire to serve another term.  
 
 Additionally, this board is the last board needing to have the term 

end month moved to June so that all City board appointments 
are done in the same month of the year. 

 
 Upon approval by the Council the Board of Adjustment members 

would have the following term end dates: 
 
 Joy Taylor   June 2022 
 Kim Winkler   June 2023 
 Paul Shell   June 2022 
 Tommy J. Gaut  June 2022 
 Calib Williams  June 2023 
 Cesar E. Arreaza  June 2023 
 Vacant    June 2022 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None. 
 



Recommendation:  Staff recommends re-appointment of the Board of Adjustment 
members as presented.  



 

 
City Council 

 

 

ITEM 4.4 
 
Philip Thurman 
Council Member 
pthurman@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  December 14, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: Request creation of a program 

to assist citizens who are in violation of the property 
maintenance code due to physical and/or financial limitations: 
P. Thurman 

 
Background: The City’s property maintenance code requires all real 

property to be free of junked vehicles, trash, debris, junk and 
overgrown vegetation.  In order to avoid criminal prosecution 
offenders are afforded the privilege to have the City remedy 
the situation and bill the property owner for the costs.  Should 
the property owner fail to pay the invoice within 30 days of 
presentment the City will place a lien on the property. 

  
Information: Occasionally there are needs to abate properties whereby the 

owners of the property are either physically or financially 
incapable of performing the clean-up.  Many times the owners 
do not want to voluntarily agree to lien there property, which 
becomes a hurdle to gaining compliance and abating the 
nuisance.  This item is a request to establish a program to 
help gain voluntary compliance by establishing guidelines to 
help with financial assistance without filing a lien on the 
property, or forgiving the lien, under certain terms and 
conditions. 

  
Fiscal Impact: To be determined 

 
Recommendation: To be determined by Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
Water/Wastewater  

 

 
ITEM 4.5 
 
Alan Burdell 
Water/Wastewater  
Operations Manager 
(512)-756-2402 
aburdell@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 
Meeting Date:   
 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: Request for approval of the 

purchase of a Camel Combo unit from Patterson Equipment 
through the TML BuyBoard: A. Burdell  

  
Background:                  In the 2021-2022 budget, Council approved $425,000 for 

purchase of a new combo unit. The current Vaccon (combo 
unit) is a 2009 model with 6967 hours. The Vaccon is a very 
valuable tool and is used daily in the Water/Wastewater 
Department, and often in other departments to help with their 
specific tasks. The Vaccon is an aged unit and breakdowns 
are becoming more frequent causing an increase in down 
time. The Vaccon will be maintained as a backup unit and 
used as needed.  

 
Information:                  Five combo units were demonstrated with pricing from 

$420,000 to $449,000.  After reviewing all of the options, the 
Camel combo fits our needs the best and is the best 
combinations of pricing and options for what we need. The 
Camel is the only unit that offers the debris box ram push off 
option that will save significant time during dumping. It has a 
level-wind hose reel that eliminates the need to focus on 
rewinding the hose. The unit is used as a hydro-excavator to 
pothole and identify nearby utilities prior to mechanical 
excavation, jetting mainline sewer blockages and sewer line 
cleaning prior to video and removal of blockage identified 
during sewer line video, removing the jetted material, cleaning 
lift stations, pressure washing, spill cleanup, water transport 
for fire support. 

 
Fiscal Impact:          ($420,004.00) 
 

 
Recommendation:   Staff requests a motion to authorize the City Manager to 

purchase the Camel Combo Unit through TML BuyBoard. 



$0.00

0721A

City of Burnet

1000 Buchanan Rd, Burnet, TX  78611

PEC
Alan Burdell

Part Number Qty Description

1 0008777 1 Camel Max / Model 1200EJ

2 Customer Supplied 1 $0.00

3 Chassis Mt Charge 1 Chassis Mounting Charge

4 TRANSMISSION 1 Automatic Transmission

5 0039176 1 8" vacuum system, "Roots type PD Model 824, 18" hg. and 4500 cfm

6 0032336 1 Vacuum booster valve

7 0032314 1 Pleated final filter assembly

8 0038687 1 Rear splash shield 

9 0032395 1 Acculevel debris level indicator~

# 0039913 1 Front body drain, 6", knife valve, 35' x 6" fabric drain hose, camlock cap 

# 0035436 1 Assy, Cover, 3", Front Drain

# 0001883 1 Cover, 6" Tailgate

# 0001953-3 1 Cover, 3" Tailgate

# 0039990 - 80/2500 1 80 GPM @ 2500 PSI

# 0040035 1 Winter recirculation

# 0038612 1 Retractable hose reel with live center with 50' x 1/2" hose

# 0032190 1 Low water warning light and alarm with water capacity digital display

# 0038610 1 Manual Accumulator shut off valve (Standard)

# 0032187 1 Wireless remote

# 0037295 2 Boom Decals, Red w/Black Border (choose qty 2) (standard)

# 3665-80000 1 800' 1" hose

# 0032380 1 Fully automatic power level wind

# 0032877 1 Hose reel tensioning system

# 0032770 1 Hose reel digital counter  (Automatic)

# 0032257 1 LED Boom work lights

# 0032253 1 LED Flood light package, tailgate area, power unit area

# 0032165 1 LED Package 1 - (1) Tailgate and (1) Boom beacon omni-directional strobe

# 0032483 1 LED Package 3 - Front, Mid-ship, and Rear bumper directional strobes

# 0032143 1 Rear-mounted light bar

# 0038693 1 Toolbox, 48", Mid, Curb

# 0028325 1 Toolbox, 48", Upper, Curb, Top Hinge

# 0038671 1 Toolbox, 52", Driver Side

# 0035745 1 Back of cab vertical tube rack

# 0002382 1 Front / rear tow hooks

# 0030054 1 Camera system, front

# Std White Paint 1 Powder coat paint finish, white (Standard)

# 0029640 1 Hydro-X Kit, Flat-flanged Style

# 6000-02011-6520 1 Large Chisel Nozzle

# 6000-02015-6520 1 Standard Nozzle  1"

# 9050-00038-0002 1 1" standard nozzle extension

# 0025085 1 Hose, 25', plastic - Single Jacket Filler Hose

# 3736-12000-0016 1 Leader Hose 1" x 10'

Customer Sales Order

Attn:

Quote Number:

Quoted For:



$0.00

0721A

City of Burnet

1000 Buchanan Rd, Burnet, TX  78611

PEC
Alan Burdell

Part Number Qty Description

Customer Sales Order

Attn:

Quote Number:

Quoted For:

# 0023397 1 Washdown handgun

# 3000-02601 1 Tigertail Sewer Hose Guide

# 3000-01242 1 Hydrant wrench

# 3000-01244 1 Puller hook

# 4510-00245 1 Fluidizing Suction Tube Nozzle 8" x 24"

# 3000-00824 1 Supertube Lock ring 6"

# 3000-00825 8 Supertube Lock ring 8"

# 3500-00206 1 Gaskets for Supertube O-ring, Gasket 6"

# 3500-00205 8 Gaskets for Supertube O-ring, Gasket 8"

# 8500-00453BF 1 8" X 36" Supertube w/ Crown

# 8510-01373 1 8" x 36" Supertube - Aluminum

# 8510-01374 3 8" x 60" Supertube - Aluminum

# 8510-01375 1 8" x 84" Supertube - Aluminum

# 8510-00290 1 8" x 96" Supertube - Aluminum

# Unit Special 1 1 Steel Surcharge 12yd 

# Unit Special 4 1 Make Ready

# Freight 1 Freight Charges

# Grand Total: $323,645.63



City of Burnet
Camel Combo Unit

$425,000 Budgeted
Cost is $420,004 



Current 2009 Vaccon



2022 Camel Max / Model 1200EJ 



Camel 1200EJ



Camel 1200 Push Plate Option





Questions?



                                                      1701 Smith Rd. (Hwy. 183 So.)
             FAX: 512-389-2663 INV. 

CITY STATE ZIP CODE

TX

YEAR MAKE MODEL/BODY VIN

2022 114SD
MILEAGE:

 
 
 
   
 

KEVIN KRIEG

 MILEAGE: 
YEAR MAKE MODEL/BODY VIN LICENSE PLATE

 MILEAGE: 
YEAR MAKE MODEL/BODY VIN LICENSE PLATE

TOTAL

DATED:                                                                LIEN AMOUNT $

cobrar. Al comprador por el rendimiento de los servicios 
relacionados  con  la  completacion  de  la  venta  y  por 
completar los documentos. El comprador puede evitar el 
pago al vendedor de este costo si el comprador mismo se 
encarga de mandejar los documentos y de los servicios 
necesarios para la completacion de la venta. El cobro 
documental no puede sobrepasar los $50.00 (U.S.)  Este 
aviso es requerido bajo la ley. 

Disclaimer of Warranties 

SHOW LIEN TO:     

PAYOFF TO:

ADDRESS:

TELEPHONE:                                                     / FAX:

GOOD UNTIL: 

QUOTED BY:

Federal Excise Tax

Trading Difference

Sales Tax

License Fee

Vehicle Inventory Tax 

Body Type:

License Wt.:

Documentary Fee

N/A
420,004.00

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

El  cobro  documental   no    es  un   cobro  oficial.  El  cobro 
documental no es un requisito bajo la ley, pero se le puede

TELEPHONE

                 Austin, Texas 78721 

PURCHASING NAME

fee may not exceed $50.00. This notice is required by law. 

        Wats: 1-800-395-2005

ADDRESS

to the seller by handling the documents and performing the

 

BURNET

BUY BOARD CONTRACT #601-19

CITY OF BURNET

1000 BUCHANAN

is  not  required  by  law  but  may  be  charged  to buyers for 
handling documents and performing services relating to the 
the closing of a sale. Buyers may avoid payment of the fee

FREIGHTLINER

    FREIGHTLINER OF AUSTIN

I/We Hereby Purchase from You, Under the Terms and Conditions Specified, the Following:
LICENSE PLATE

A documentary fee is not an official fee, a documentary  fee

Date 09/23/2021

TBD

             Bus: 512-389-0000

  Any warranties on the products sold hereby are those made by 
   the  factory.  The  Seller , Freightliner  of  Austin ,  hereby 
   expressly disclaims all warranties, either expressed or implied
   including  any implied warranty of merchantability or fitness
   for a particular purpose, and Freightliner of Austin, neither 
   assumes nor authorizes any other person to assume for it any 

420,004.00
N/A

   liability in connection with the sale of this vehicle. 

CUSTOMER SIGNATURE 

SALESMAN SIGNATURE 

        TRADE-IN

cars or trucks involved, if any. THIS IS NOT A CONDITIONAL SALES CONTRACT, BUT IS A BUYER'S ORDER.  All new vehicles carry the standard factory warranty. It is understood there is no guarantee on the above described new or used vehicle

TOTAL SALE PRICE

Payoff on Trade

Total Balance Due 420,004.00
Less Deposit

Ext. Service Agreement

DRAFT THRU: 

ADDRESS:

State Insp.:

License:

114SD BASE MODEL PRICE
CHASSIS OPTION CONTENT

 
 
 

        TRADE-IN

Trade Allowance 

other than appears on this Buyer's Order. Mileage, if used vehicle model is not guaranteed and a verbal agreement by the Salesman will not be considered binding on the Seller. It is agreed that neither Freightliner of Austin nor the manufacturer will be 

CONTRACTUAL DISCLOSURE STATEMENT FOR USED VEHICLE ONLY. "The information you see on the window form for this vehicle is part of this contract. Information on the window form overrieds any contrary provisions in the contract of sale. "

ADDRESS:

Full disclosure required by federal regulation "Z", The Consumer Protection Act and The Texas Consumer Credit Code, will be made prior to consummation of a credit sale. This written order comprises the entire agreement pertaining to this purchase

property is delivered to him/her and either the full price is paid in cash or satisfactory deferred payment agreement is executed by the parties hereto, the terms of which shall thereafter be controlling, and a clear title is furnished to dealer for the used 
and no other agreement of any kind, verbal understanding or promise whatsoever, will be recognized. It is expressly agreed that the purchaser acquires no right, title or interest in or to the property which he agrees to purchase hereunder until such 

DRAFT FOR $ Title:

Transfer:

 

$400.00
 
 

78611

$63,132.00

 
BUY BOARD FEE

 

CAMEL 1200 EJECTOR STYLE JET/VAC MODULE

 services relating to the closing of the sale. A documentary 

$40,326.00
$316,146.00



 
 

 
Administration 

 

 
ITEM 4.6 
 
David Vaughn 
City Manager 
(512)-715-3208 
dvaughn@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 

Meeting Date:  December 14, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action:  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY 

COUNCIL, OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING PROFESSIONAL SERVICE PROVIDER(S) 
SELECTION (GRANT WRITER) FOR TEXAS 
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 
(TDHCA) COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-
CORONAVIRUS (CDBG-CV) COMMUNITY RESILIENCY 
PROJECT (CRP): D. Vaughn 

 
 
Background:   
 
Information: Due to the short time period allowed for this process, staff is 

still in the process of reviewing proposals at the time of 
agenda posting. Staff will have a recommendation for Council 
at the time of the meeting. 

 
Fiscal Impact: To be determined. 
  
Recommendation:  Approve and adopt Resolution R2021-61 as presented.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

RESOLUTION R2021-61  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL, OF THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING PROFESSIONAL SERVICE PROVIDER(S) 
SELECTION (GRANT WRITER) FOR TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF 
HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS (TDHCA) COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-CORONAVIRUS (CDBG-CV) 
COMMUNITY RESILIENCY PROJECT (CRP). 

 
 

WHEREAS, participation in CDBG-CV (CRP) program(s) requires implementation 
by professionals experienced in the administration of federally-funded projects; 
 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to identify qualified and responsive providers for these services 
a Request for Proposals (RFP) process for administration services has been completed 
in accordance with the TDHCA requirements; 

 
  

 WHEREAS, the proposals received by the due date have been reviewed to determine 
the most qualified and responsive providers for each professional service giving 
consideration to ability to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the 
proposed procurement, integrity, compliance with public policy, record of past 
performance, and financial and technical resources 

 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BURNET, TEXAS THAT:  

 
 

Section 1. Approval. That ___________________________ is selected to assist with 
application preparation and provide project-related administration and management 
services for the CDBG-CB (CRP) programs (s).  
 
Section 2. Findings. That any and all project-related services contracts or 
commitments made with the above-named service provider(s) are dependent on the 
successful negotiation of a contract with the service provider(s). 
 
Section 3. Open Meetings. It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this resolution was passed was open to the public and that public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 
 



Section 4.   Effective Date. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
passage, and approval as prescribed by law. 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 14th day of December, 2021. 
 
 
 
   
      Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 



 
 

 
Administration 

 

 
ITEM 4.7 
 
David Vaughn 
City Manager 
(512)-715-3208 
dvaughn@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 

Meeting Date:   December 14, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action:  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY 

COUNCIL, OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, REJECTING ALL 
STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ 2021-02) FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE (ENGINEERING/ARCHITECTURAL) 
FOR TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY 
AFFAIRS (TDHCA) COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 
GRANT-CORONAVIRUS (CDBG-CV) COMMUNITY 
RESILIENCY PROJECT (CRP); AND DIRECTING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO REPUBLISH A REQUEST FOR SAID 
STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS: D. Vaughn 

 
Background:   
 
Information:  Three submittals were received for RFQ 2021-03 TDHCA CDBG 

Community Resiliency Grant-Engineering/Architectural Services.  
Two were disqualified for untimely submission. One submittal was 
for Engineering services only and no architectural services. 
Discussions with CDBG representatives have recommended 
reposting the RFQ. 

 
  
 
Fiscal Impact:  
  
Recommendation:  Approve and adopt Resolution R2021-62 as presented.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION R2021-62 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL, OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, 
REJECTING ALL STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ 2021-02) FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE (ENGINEERING/ARCHITECTURAL) FOR TEXAS 
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY AFFAIRS (TDHCA) 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT-CORONAVIRUS (CDBG-CV) 
COMMUNITY RESILIENCY PROJECT (CRP); AND AUTHORIZE AND 
DIRECT THE CITY MANAGER TO COORDINATE THE SELECTION 
PROCESS IN ACCORDANCE WITH TDHCS CDBG-CV REQUIREMENTS. 

 
WHEREAS, participation in CDBG-CV (CRP) program(s) requires implementation by 
professionals experienced in the administration of federally-funded projects; 
 
WHEREAS, in order to identify qualified and responsive providers for these services a Request 
for Qualifications (RFQ) for engineering/architectural services has been completed in 
accordance with the TDHCA requirements; 

  
WHEREAS, no Statement of Qualification for architectural services were received. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS THAT:  

 
Section one.   Rejection. The Statement of Qualifications for all Engineering/Architectural 
Services, received by the due date are hereby rejected.  
 
Section two.   Republish.  The City Manager’s actions to republish the request for 
qualifications is hereby ratified and the City Manager is authorized and directed to coordinate 
the selection process in accordance with TDHCA CDBG-CV requirements.   
 
Section Three. Findings. That any and all project-related services contracts or commitments 
made with the above-named service provider(s) are dependent on the successful negotiation 
of a contract with the service provider(s). 
 
Section four. Open Meetings. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this resolution was passed was open to the public and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
Section five.  Effective Date. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
passage, and approval as prescribed by law. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 14th day of December, 2021. 
 
       
 
 



       City of Burnet 
 
 
   
      Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
Street Department 

 

 
ITEM 4.8 
 
Mark Miller 
Stree department Supervisor 
(512)-756-2402 
mmiller@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 

Meeting Date:  December 14, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: Award of Street Paving Project 

Bid: M. Miller 
   
Background: On November 24, 2021 posted RFP2021-004 Street Paving 

Bid the City of Burnet went for bid for the street paving for 
Cemetery Street (Westfall to S Rhomberg), South Rhomberg 
(Cemetery Street to Pecan Street) and the radius approaches 
at McNeil, Cactus, Willow and Elm. 

 
 Six bids were received on December 9, 2021 and are listed 

below for Council consideration: 
 
Information: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                             
 
 

Clarification of overage price was verified with Brian Bennett at 
$104.00 per ton. City staff has recently inspected a paving 
project performed by this contractor.  The paving was 
comparable in size and the work was satisfactory. 
   

Paving Contractor Unit 
Price 

Total Square 
Yard Bid 

(Unit PricexSq. 
Yds.) 

Overage 
Price per ton 

Lone Star Paving $14.00 $80,080.00 
 

$90.00 

Alpha Paving $14.97 $85,628.40 N/A 
 

Cholla Pavement 
Maintenance, Inc. 

 
$24.00 

 
$137,280.00 

 
N/A 

 
Bennett Paving Inc. $11.70 $66,924.00 N/A 

 
Hinds Paving $14.85 $84,942.00 N/A 

 
Fuquay, Inc. $14.00 $80,080.00 $85.00 

 



Fiscal Impact: Approximately $66,924 plus overage charges. 
  
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends award to Bennett Paving Inc. 



 
 

 
Administration 

 

 
ITEM 4.9 
 
David Vaughn 
City Manager 
(512)-715-3208 
dvaughn@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 

Meeting Date:  December 14, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action:  A First Amendment to the 

Interlocal Agreement between Burnet Consolidated 
Independent School District and the City of Burnet for School 
Resource Officers: D. Vaughn 

 
Background:   
 
Information: Due to staffing shortages, the City is unable to provide the 

third SRO to the District and does not anticipate being able to 
do so for the remainder of the school year, therefore the 
agreement needs to be amended to properly reflect the level 
of service the school is receiving under this agreement. 

 
Fiscal Impact: The reduced payment from the District is offset with staff 

saving resulting from the vacant position, therefore there is no 
expected cost at this time. 

  
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the first amendment to the 

interlocal as presented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
BURNET CONSOLIDATED INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT  
AND THE CITY OF BURNET 
 

This First Amendment to Interlocal Agreement between Burnet Consolidated 
Independent School District and the City of Burnet (this “Amendment”) is entered into by 
and between the Burnet Consolidated School District (“District”) and the City of Burnet 
(“City”) this 14th day of December 2021. 

 
RECITALS 

 
Whereas, the District and City  entered into that certain Interlocal Agreement Between 
Burnet Consolidated Independent School District and City on June 28, 2021, (the 
“Agreement”); and  
 
Whereas, the Parties desire to amend the Agreement as set forth below; and 
 
Whereas, All defined terms not otherwise defined in this Amendment shall have the 
same meaning as the meaning given such terms in the Agreement. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which District and City acknowledge, and the mutual benefits to be derived by the Parties 
from this Amendment, District and City agree as follows:   
 
(I) Amendments. The Agreement shall be amended as follows: 
 

Due to staffing shortages, the City shall provide two (2) Burnet Police Department 
(BPD) police officers to serve as SRO’s for the remainder of the first year and the 
compensation from BCISD to the City for services shall be amended as follows: 

 
Month # of Officers Monthly Payment 

December 2021 2 $16,404 
January 2022 2 $16,404 
February 2022 2 $16,404 

March 2022 2 $16,404 
April 2022 2 $16,404 
May 2022 2 $16,404 

 



 
(II) Binding. This First Amendment is binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of 
the parties and their prospective successors and assigns. 
 
(III) Counterparts. This First Amendment may be executed and delivered in one or 
more counterparts. Transmission of this First Amendment by telecopy shall be deemed 
transmission of the original First Amendment for all purposes. 

 
(IV) Full Force and Effect. In all other respects, the Contract shall continue in full 
force and effect, unmodified except to the extent provided herein, and City and District 
hereby Ratify and Affirm the same. 
 
This First Amendment to be effective as of the date first set out above. 
  

 
Burnet Consolidated Independent School District 

 
 

 
By:_______________________________ 

      Keith McBurnett, Superintendent 
 
 
  

City of Burnet, a Texas Municipal Corporation 
 
 
             
     By:_______________________________ 
      David Vaughn, City Manager 
 
 



 
 

 
Development Services 

 

 
ITEM 4.10 
 
Habib Erkan 
Assistant City Manager 
512-715-3000 
herkan@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  December 14, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF BURNET, TEXAS ACCEPTING A PETITION 
FOR ANNEXATION OF REAL PROPERTY LOCATE NORTH 
OF THE CITY LIMITS AND WEST OF US ROUTE 281, 
BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS A 69.275-
ACRE TRACT OF LAND OUT OF JOHN HAMILTON 
SURVEY, NO. 1, ABSTRACT NO 405, THE THOMAS ALLEY 
SURVEY NO. 410, ABSTRACT NO. 35, AND THE JOSE 
MARIA MUSQUEZ SURVEY NO. 1, ABSTRACT NO. 581, 
BURNET COUNTY, TEXAS; AND AUTHORIZING THE 
INITIATION OF PROCEEDINGS TO ANNEX THE REAL 
PROPERTY: H. Erkan 

 
Background: LinTang, LLC is the owner of 69.275 acres of real property 

located north of the city limits and west of US Route 281. 
Pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 43 
Subchapter C-3 the owner submitted a petition for annexation 
on November 15, 2021. In accordance with the subdivision 
ordinance the costs to construct internal streets and drainage; 
as well as the costs to bring utilities to the development shall 
be borne by the landowner.  Upon annexation, the property 
will be subject to city ad valorem and eligible to receive city 
services. 

 
 
Information: This resolution authorizes staff to initiate annexation 

proceedings, negotiate a service plan and set the date of the 
statutory required public hearing. 

  
Fiscal Impact    
 
Recommendation: Approve and adopt Resolution R2021-63 as presented.



RESOLUTION NO. R2021-63 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF BURNET, TEXAS 
ACCEPTING A PETITION FOR ANNEXATION OF REAL PROPERTY 
LOCATE NORTH OF THE CITY LIMITS AND WEST OF US ROUTE 
281,AND MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS A 69.275-ACRE 
TRACT OF LAND OUT OF JOHN HAMILTON SURVEY, NO. 1, 
ABSTRACT NO 405, THE THOMAS ALLEY SURVEY NO. 410, 
ABSTRACT NO. 35, AND THE JOSE MARIA MUSQUEZ SURVEY NO. 1, 
ABSTRACT NO. 581, BURNET COUNTY, TEXAS; AND AUTHORIZING 
THE INITIATION OF PROCEEDINGS TO ANNEX THE REAL 
PROPERTY. 

 
WHEREAS, LinTang, LLC, (hereinafter “petitioner”) is the owner of 69.275 acres of real 
property located north of the city limits and west of US Route 281, (hereinafter the 
“territory”); and  
 
WHEREAS, city council finds the territory to be located within the city’s extraterritorial 
jurisdiction and continuous with its corporate limits and otherwise qualified to be annexed 
pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapter 43 Subchapter C-3, and other 
applicable law. 
  
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS. THAT: 
 
Section one.  Petition Accepted.  The petition attached hereto to annex the territory 
described therein is hereby accepted. 
 
Section two.  Service Agreement.  Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sec. 43.0672, 
the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to negotiate the terms of a service 
agreement for the territory prior to the date of the public hearing referenced in section 
three.  The Service Agreement shall include the provision of police protection; fire 
protection; emergency medical services; solid waste collection; and operation and 
maintenance of water and wastewater facilities in a manner equivalent to that which such 
services are provided to other properties within the city’s corporate limits. 
 
Section three.  Public Hearing.  The City Manager is authorized and directed to set the 
date of public hearing and the City Secretary is hereby authorized and directed to cause 
notice of such public hearing to be published once in a newspaper having general 
circulation in the city and in the above-described territory not more than twenty days nor 
less than ten days prior to the date of such public hearing, and post such notice on the 
city’s website from the same date until the day of public hearing; and provide notice by 
mail deliver to the school district and governmental entities serving the territory as 
prescribed by Texas Local Government Code Sec. 43.0905 and 43.9051. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 14th day of December 2021. 
 



      
 
       CITY OF BURNET 
 

 
        

      Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kelly Dix, City Secretary      
  



 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO ALL INTERESTED PERSONS, THAT: 

 
The City of Burnet, Texas proposes to institute annexation proceedings to enlarge and 
extend the boundary limits of said city to include the following described territory, to-wit: 
 

A 69.275-acre tract of land out of John Hamilton Survey, No. 1, Abstract No 
405, the Thomas Alley Survey No. 410, Abstract No. 35, and the Jose Maria 
Musquez Survey No. 1, Abstract No. 581, Burnet County, Texas 
 
A map of the land and territory to be annexed is available for viewing in the 
office of the City Secretary during normal business hours. 

 
A public hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of the City of 
Burnet, Texas on the ____ day of ___________, 2022 at 6 o’clock, p.m., in 
______________________________________________________City of Burnet, 
Texas, for all persons interested in the above proposed annexation.  At said time and 
place all such persons shall have the right to appear and be heard.  Of all said matters 
and things, all persons interested in the things and matters herein mentioned, will take 
notice. 
 
By order of the City Council of the City of Burnet, Texas this the 14th day of December 
2021. 
 
 
       CITY OF BURNET 
 

 
        

      Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 



 

 

 
Development Services 

 
ITEM 4.11 
Leslie Kimbler 
Interim Planner I 
512-715-3206 
lkimbler@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 

Meeting Date: December 14, 2021 

Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF BURNET, TEXAS, AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NO. 2012-09 AND THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF 
THE CITY OF BURNET BY ASSIGNING A DESIGNATION OF 
“COMMERCIAL” FOR THE PROPERTY AT 1001 NORTH HILL 
STREET (LEGAL DESCRIPTION: BEING LOTS TEN, ELEVEN AND 
TWELVE, IN THE KINCHELOE ADDITION)”; PROVIDING A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE: L. Kimbler 

 
Background: This property is located near the intersection of North Hill Street and 

East Graves Street (see Exhibit A).  The property is the site of the 
Sunshine House, also known as the Hill Country Children’s Advocacy 
Center.  The center is a resource for children who are victims of crimes.  
The center provides forensic interviewing and counseling services.  

  
 The applicant is seeking the requested amendment to the FLUM to 

obtain a zoning change to allow for the development of a new building.  
They have outgrown their current building and will be utilizing a vacant 
portion of their property to expand their current operations. The 
applicant is requesting a change from Single Family Residential – 
District “R-1” to Light Commercial – District “C-1” with a conditional use 
permit for “Clinic and Safety Services”. 

 
The City’s Future Land Use Map for this property is designated as 
Residential and the requested Future Land Use amendment must be 
approved before the zoning change request can be approved (next 
item on the agenda).   

 
Staff Analysis: The property is currently an empty lot, measuring approximately 0.75 

of an acre.  This is large enough for the expected expansion of the 
applicant’s building.   

 
The Future Land Use Map calls for the subject tract to be Residential   
This tract would be bounded by other Future Land Uses of Residential 
on the west and south sides.  The property would be bounded to the 



 

north and east by a Future Land Use designation of Government (see 
Exhibit B).   

  
Public Notification: A Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Burnet Bulletin on 

December 8, 2021, and written notices were mailed to twelve (12) 
surrounding property owners within 200 feet of the subject property.  

 During the Planning and Zoning’s Public Hearing, one neighboring 
citizen did express his concerns and requested further information on 
the intent of the project. The citizen did state that, at this moment, he 
did not oppose or support the request.  No further responses in favor 
or opposition have been received at this time.   

P&Z Report: P&Z conducted a scheduled public hearing and recommended 
approval of the requested Future Land Use amendment on December 
6, 2021. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 2021-45 as presented. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-45 

FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
BURNET, TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2012-09 AND THE 
FUTURE LAND USE MAP OF THE CITY OF BURNET BY ASSIGNING A 
DESIGNATION OF “COMMERCIAL FOR THE PROPERTY AT 1001 
NORTH HILL STREET (LEGAL DESCRIPTION: BEING LOTS TEN, 
ELEVEN AND TWELVE, IN THE KINCHELOE ADDITION)”; PROVIDING A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, the City Council, by the passage and approval of Ordinance No. 2012-
09, did assign Future Land Use classifications for property located within the city in 
accordance with the Official Future Land Use Map as approved with said ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Official Future Land Use 
Map by amending the Future Land Use classification of the Real Property (“Property”) 
described herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission, after conducting a public hearing 
on the matter, deliberated the merits of the proposed amendment of Future Land Use 
classification and has made a report and recommendation to City Council; and  

WHEREAS, in passing and approving this ordinance it is legislatively found the 
Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council complied with all notice, hearing and 
meetings requirements set forth in Texas Local Government Chapter 211; Texas 
Government Code Chapter 551, the City Charter; and Chapter 118, of the Code of 
Ordinances; and 

WHEREAS, City Council, after considering the testimony and comments of the 
public, reports and recommendations of City Staff and the Planning and Zoning 
Commission, and the deliberation of its members, by passage and approval of this 
Ordinance hereby determines the action taken herein is meritorious and beneficial to the 
public health, safety, and welfare.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS, THAT:  
 

Section one.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and 
correct and are hereby adopted and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.  
 

 
 
Section two.  Property.   The Property that is the subject to this Future Land Use 

Reclassification is 1001 NORTH HILL STREET (LEGAL DESCRIPTION: BEING LOTS TEN, 
ELEVEN AND TWELVE, IN THE KINCHELOE ADDITION) as shown on Exhibit “A” hereto. 

 



 

Section three.  Future Land Use Map.  “Commercial” Future Land Use is hereby 
assigned to the Property described in section two. 

 
 Section four.  Future Land Use Map Revision.  The City Secretary is hereby 
authorized and directed to revise the Official Future Land Use Map to reflect the change in 
Future Land Use Classification approved by this Ordinance. 

 
Section five.  Repealer.  Other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith 

are hereby repealed only to the extent of such conflict. 
 

Section six.  Severability.  This Ordinance is severable as provided in City Code 
Section 1-7 as same may be amended, recodified or otherwise revised. 
 

Section seven.  Effective Date.  This ordinance is effective upon final passage and 
approval. 
 
PASSED on First Reading the 14TH day of December 2021. 
 
FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on the 11th day of January 2022 
 
 
 
 
       CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS  
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
__________________________ 
Kelly Dix, City Secretary  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Exhibit “A” 
Location Map 

 

 



 

 

 
Development Services 

 
ITEM 4.12 
Leslie Kimbler 
Interim Planner I 
512-715-3206 
lkimbler@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 

Meeting Date: December 14, 2021 

Agenda Item: Discuss and Consider: FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF BURNET, TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 
2021-01 AND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY BY 
ASSIGNING THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS 1001 NORTH HILL 
STREET (LEGAL DESCRIPTION: BEING LOTS TEN, ELEVEN AND 
TWELVE, IN THE KINCHELOE ADDITION). WITH LIGHT 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT “C-1” WITH A CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT FOR “CLINIC AND SAFETY SERVICES; PROVIDING A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE: L. Kimbler 

 
Background: This property is located near the intersection of North Hill and East 

Graves Street.  The property is the site of the Sunshine House, also 
known as the Hill Country Children’s Advocacy Center.  The Center is 
a resource for children who are victims of crimes.  The Center provides 
forensic interviewing and counseling services.  

  
Information: The applicant is seeking the requested zoning to allow for the 

development of a new building.  They have outgrown their current 
building and will be utilizing a vacant portion of their property to expand 
their current operations.  The applicant is requesting a change from 
Single Family Residential- District “R-1” to Light Commercial- District 
“C-1” with a Conditional Use Permit for “Clinic and Safety Services”. 

 
Staff Analysis: The Future Land Use Map (Exhibit B) designation for the area is 

Commercial.  The item prior to this item on the agenda is a request to 
amend the City’s Future Land Use Map. If approved Light Commercial 
– District “C-1” would be appropriate for this area. 
Properties adjacent to the subject property are zoned as follows: 

 
 North South East  West 
Zoning “C-2” “R-1” “R-1” “R-1” 
FLUM Government Residential Government Residential 
Land Use Safety Services 

Office 
Residential Church Multi-Family 

 



 

Public Notification: A Notice of Public Hearing was published in the Burnet Bulletin on 
December 8, 2021, and written notices were mailed to twelve (12) 
surrounding property owners within 200 feet of the subject property. 
There have been zero responses in favor and zero responses in 
opposition. 

P&Z Report: P&Z conducted a scheduled public hearing and recommended 
approval of the requested zone change on December 6, 2021. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 2021-46 as presented. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-46 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF BURNET, TEXAS, 
AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2021-01 AND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 
OF THE CITY BY ASSIGNING THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS 1001 
NORTH HILL STREET (LEGAL DESCRIPTION: BEING LOTS TEN, 
ELEVEN AND TWELVE, IN THE KINCHELOE ADDITION) WITH LIGHT 
COMMERCIAL-DISTRICT “C-1” WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
FOR “CLINIC AND SAFETY SERVICES”; PROVIDING A REPEALER 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, the City Council, by the passage and approval of Ordinance No. 2021-001, 
affixed the zoning classifications for each and every property located within the city in 
accordance with the Official Zoning Map as approved with said ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the Official Zoning Map by amending 
the zoning classification of the Real Property (“Property”) described herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission, after conducting a public hearing on the 
matter, deliberated the merits of the proposed amendment of zoning classification and has 
made a report and recommendation to City Council; and  

WHEREAS, in passing and approving this ordinance it is legislatively found the Planning 
and Zoning Commission and City Council complied with all notice, hearing and meetings 
requirements set forth in Texas Local Government Chapter 211; Texas Government Code 
Chapter 551, the City Charter; and Chapter 118, of the Code of Ordinances; and 

WHEREAS, it is further legislatively found that the required amendment to the Future Land 
Use Plan was, prior to this action, passed and approved by ordinance of this Council; and 

WHEREAS, City Council, after considering the testimony and comments of the public, 
reports and recommendations of City Staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission, and 
the deliberation of its members, by passage and approval of this Ordinance hereby 
determines the action taken herein is meritorious and beneficial to the public health, safety, 
and welfare.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS, THAT:  
 
Section one.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct 
and are hereby adopted and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact.  
 
Section two.  Property.   The Property that is the subject to this Zoning District 
Reclassification is 1001 NORTH HILL STREET (LEGAL DESCRIPTION: BEING LOTS TEN, 
ELEVEN AND TWELVE, IN THE KINCHELOE ADDITION) as shown on Exhibit “A” hereto. 



 

   
Section three Zoning District Reclassification.  Light Commercial- District “C-1” with a 
Conditional Use Permit for “Clinic and Safety Services” Zoning District Classification is hereby 
assigned to the Property described in section two. 

 
Section four.  Zoning Map Revision.  The City Secretary is hereby authorized and directed 
to revise the Official Zoning Map to reflect the change in Zoning District Classification 
approved by this Ordinance. 

 
Section five.  Repealer.  Other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are 
hereby repealed only to the extent of such conflict. 
 
Section six.  Severability.  This Ordinance is severable as provided in City Code Section 
1-7 as same may be amended, recodified or otherwise revised. 
 
Section seven.  Effective Date.  This ordinance is effective upon final passage and 
approval. 
 
 
PASSED on First Reading the 14TH day of December 2021. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 11th day of January 2022. 
 
 
       CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS  
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 
ATTEST:   
 
 
__________________________ 
Kelly Dix, City Secretary  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 



 

 
 
 

Exhibit “A” 
Location Map 

 

 



Action Item

Discuss and Consider: FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE OF THE

CITY COUNCIL OF BURNET, TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO.

2021-01 AND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY BY

ASSIGNING THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED AS 1001 NORTH HILL

STREET (LEGAL DESCRIPTION: BEING LOTS TEN, ELEVEN AND

TWELVE, IN THE KINCHELOE ADDITION). WITH LIGHT COMMERCIAL

DISTRICT “C-1” WITH A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR “CLINIC AND

SAFETY SERVICES; PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING A

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE



Action Item
Information:

 Current Zoning:
Single-Family Residential – “R-1”

 Requested Zoning:
Light Commercial – District “C-1” with
Conditional Use permit to allow “Clinic and
Safety Services”

 Allow for the expansion of the Hill Country
Children’s Advocacy Center where they
provide forensic interviewing, counseling
and other safety services to children who
were victims of crime



Government Commercial Residential Open Space

Action Item
Future Land Use Map:

Request for FLUM amendment would allow for the 
proposed Light Commercial – District “C-1” zoning 

to be appropriate for this area.

P&Z conducted a scheduled public
hearing and recommended approval of
the requested zone change on December
6, 2021.



Action Item

Staff recommends approval of the request to 
rezone the property from its present designation 
of Single-Family Residential – District “R-1” to a 
designation of Light Commercial – District “C-1” 

with a conditional use permit for “Clinic and 
Safety Services”.



 

 

 
Development Services 

 
ITEM 4.13 
 
Leslie Kimbler 
Planner I 
512-715-3206 
lkimbler@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
Meeting Date: December 14, 2021 
 
Action Item: Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, APPROVING THE “FINAL PLAT” 
OF THE CROSSINGS AT 281 SUBDIVISION, A PROPOSED 2-LOT 
COMMERCIAL SUBDIVISION CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 
13.51 ACRES: L. Kimbler  

 
Information: The proposed Final Plat (Exhibit A) is a commercial subdivision consisting 

of approximately 13.51 acres located on the west side of South Water 
Street (Hwy 281) and immediately south of Houston Clinton Drive.  The 
proposed subdivision will include two (2) commercial lots being 8.31 acres 
and 3.87 acres in size. 

 
 The tract is zoned Heavy Commercial – District “C-3”. 
 
 The proposed subdivision will create one new road to be called “Cary 

Johnson Parkway”. This new road will extend from South Highway 281 to 
Houston Clinton Drive. 

  
The 100-year floodplain does encroach onto the property.  Finished Floor 
Elevations (FFE) have been noted on the plat for future development.  
Once construction has been completed, a Letter of Map Revision will be 
submitted to FEMA as required by code.  
 

Staff Analysis: City staff and city engineer have reviewed the plat in accordance with 
Sec. 98-24 and have found the plat does meet the requirements as 
outlined in the code. 

 
P&Z Report: P&Z conducted a scheduled public hearing on December 6, 2021 and 

recommended approval of the Final Plat of The Crossing at 281 
Subdivision. 

Staff  
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of resolution R2021-64. 
 



 

RESOLUTION NO. R2021-64 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS, APPROVING THE “FINAL PLAT” OF THE CROSSINGS AT 281 
SUBDIVISION, A PROPOSED 2-LOT COMMERCIAL SUBDIVISION 
CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 13.51 ACRES 

 
Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission has made its recommendation on 

the final plat of The Crossings at 281; and 
 
Whereas, the city staff and the city engineer have opined the application 

substantially complies with the subdivision ordinance; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS, THAT:  
 
Section 1. Findings. The recitals to this Resolution are incorporated herein for all 
purposes. 
 
Section 2. Approval. The final plat of The Crossings at 281, is hereby approved. 
 
Section 3. Recordation.  The final plat of The Crossings at 281 Subdivision may be 
recorded in the Public Records of the County Clerk of Burnet County, Texas upon 
compliance with the requirements of Subdivision Code Sec. 98-24(h) and related 
regulations. 
 
Section 4. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting 
at which this resolution was passed was open to the public and that public notice of the 
time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
Section 5.   Effective Date. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
passage, and approval as prescribed by law. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 14th day of December 2021.  
 
 

     CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS 
 
 
       

ATTEST:     Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 
 
      
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 



 

 
Exhibit “A” 

Plat 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 



Discuss and Consider

Action Item:

Discuss and consider: A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE

CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, APPROVING THE “FINAL PLAT” OF THE

CROSSINGS AT 281 SUBDIVISION, A PROPOSED 2-LOT

COMMERCIAL SUBDIVISION CONSISTING OF APPROXIMATELY 13.51

ACRES



Public Hearing

The Crossingsat 281

 13.51acres

 Zoned C-3

 2Commercial lots

 CaryJohnson Parkway

 Access from Highway 281 and

Houston ClintonDrive.



Action Item

The proposed Final Plat of The Crossings at 281 has
been reviewed using Code of Ordinances Section 98-24
(Final Plats) as a guide. It has been found to comply with
ordinance requirements relating to form and content.

At Planning and Zonings regularly scheduled meeting on
December 6th, after a public hearing, did recommend
approval.



Action Item

Staff recommends approval the 
Final Plat of The Crossings at 281 

Subdivision



 
 

 
Administration 

 

 
ITEM 4.14 
 
Habib Erkan 
Assistant City Manager 
512-715-3201 
herkan@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
Meeting Date:  December 14, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF A PUBLIC 
UTILITY EASEMENT FROM H-E-B LOCATED NEAR 
THE INTERSECTION OF EAST POLK STREET AND 
SOUTH SILVER STREET: H. Erkan 

 
Background: During the expansion of the H-E-B it was discovered that there 

was no easement authorizing the placement of the public 
water line running along the east side of the property. 

  
Information: The easement shall be of variable width and shall extend 

along the ease property line. 
   
Fiscal Impact: The dedication of the easement shall have no direct fiscal 

impact.  
 
Recommendation: Approve and adopt Resolution R2021-65 as presented. 
  



RESOLUTION N0. R2021-65 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF A PUBLIC UTILITY 
EASEMENT FROM H-E-B LOCATED NEAR THE INTERSECTION OF 
EAST POLK STREET AND SOUTH SILVER STREET 

 
WHEREAS, during the expansion of the H-E-B it was discovered that there was no 
easement authorizing the placement of the public water line running along the east side of 
the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, H-E-B LP, wishes to dedicate a public utility easement to further facilitate 
the development of the project. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS, THAT:  
 
Section one.  Findings. That the recitals to this resolution are incorporated herein for 
all purposes. 
 
Section two. Easement Agreement Approved. The Easement Agreement, as 
memorialized in the attachment hereto is hereby approved. 
 
Section three.  Authorization. The mayor is hereby authorized to execute an instrument 
in substantial form as the attachment hereto and take such further action as may be 
reasonably necessary to facilitate the purpose of this resolution. 
  
Section four.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this resolution was passed was open to the public and that public notice 
of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 
 
Section five.  Effective Date. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
passage, and approval as prescribed by law. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this the 14 day of December, 2021.  
 
 

       CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS 
 
        

ATTEST:      Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 
 
      
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 















 
 

 
Administration 

 
 

 

ITEM 4.15 
 
David Vaughn 
City Manager 
(512)-715-3208 
dvaughn@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 

Meeting Date:  December 14, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: Authorize staff to enter into a        

vendor agreement with Opportunities for Williamson and  
Burnet Counties (OWBC) for the purpose of a Low Income 
Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP): D. Vaughn 

 
Background: The City of Burnet currently has a Vendor agreement with 

OWBC that provides grant funding to assist customers with 
payment of their electric bill only. OWBC recently was notified 
that funding from the Texas Department of Housing and 
Community Affairs (TDHCA) to provide assistance to low 
income water customers for payment of their water bill is 
expected in 2022. 

 
OWBC is currently working on getting Vendor Agreements in 
place to expedite the processing of requests for assistance 
for customers in need when the funding becomes available. 
Expected funding from TDHCA is January 2022. 

 
Information: Once funding has been received, City of Burnet residents who 

qualify for low income assistance can apply with OWBC for a 
grant to assist them with payment of their water bill in the 
same manner that they do now for assistance with their 
electric bill. 

 
The Vendor Agreement with Opportunities for Williamson and 
Burnet Counties will be a one year vendor agreement with the 
option to extend to a two year agreement.  

  
Fiscal Impact: As of the last renewal of the Comprehensive Energy 

Assistance Program (CEAP) Vendor Agreement in 
September 2020; Burnet residents had received 760 
payments totaling $84,131 in assistance grants for electric, 
from OWBC in a 24 month period. The City’s clients that 
receive assistance on electric will be eligible for water 
assistance as well.  

   
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the vendor agreement with 

Opportunities for Williamson and Burnet Counties (OWBC) for 
the Low Income Household Water Assistance Program 
(LIHWAP) to assist City of Burnet residents. 



2021 Dec 09 

Document Ref: VGF67-NQC6I-NCZF9-688ET Page 1 of 5



Document Ref: VGF67-NQC6I-NCZF9-688ET Page 2 of 5



Document Ref: VGF67-NQC6I-NCZF9-688ET Page 3 of 5



Document Ref: VGF67-NQC6I-NCZF9-688ET Page 4 of 5



2021-12-09

Document Ref: VGF67-NQC6I-NCZF9-688ET Page 5 of 5



Signature Certificate
Document Ref.: VGF67-NQC6I-NCZF9-688ET

Document signed by:

Marco Cruz
Verified E-mail:
mcruz@owbc-tx.org

IP: 162.202.207.159 Date: 09 Dec 2021 21:51:10 UTC

Document completed by all parties on:
09 Dec 2021 21:51:10 UTC

Page 1 of 1

Signed with PandaDoc.com

PandaDoc is a document workflow and certified eSignature
solution trusted by 25,000+ companies worldwide.



 
 

 
Administration 

 
 

 

ITEM 4.15 
 
David Vaughn 
City Manager 
(512)-715-3208 
dvaughn@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 

Meeting Date:  December 14, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: Authorize staff to enter into a        

vendor agreement with Opportunities for Williamson and  
Burnet Counties (OWBC) for the purpose of Low Income 
Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP): P. 
Langford 

 
Background: The City of Burnet currently has a CEAP Vendor agreement 

with OWBC that provides grant funding to assist customers 
with payment of their electric bill.  OWBC recently secured 
funding from the Texas Deparment of Housing and 
Community Affairs (TDHCA) to provide assistance to low 
income water customers for payment of their water bill. 

 
 City of Burnet residents who qualify for low income assistance 

can apply with OWBC for a grant to assist them with payment 
of their water bill.    

 
Information: The contract with Opportunities for Williamson and Burnet 

Counties is renewed every two years.  There have been no 
significant changes to the contract since the last renewal. 

  
Fiscal Impact: Burnet residents have received 760 payments totaling 

$84,131 in assistance grants from Opportunities for 
Williamson and Burnet Counties in the past 24 months.  

   
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of the vendor agreement with 

Opportunities for Williamson and Burnet Counties (OWBC) for 
the Comprehensive Energy Assistance Program (CEAP) to 
assist City of Burnet residents. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 

 
Administration 

 

 
ITEM 4.16 
 
David Vaughn 
City Manager 
512-715-3208 
Dvaughn@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
 
 

Meeting Date:  December 14, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS, APPROVING 
A PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH THE 
FIRM FREESE AND NICHOLS TO PROVIDE 
PROFESSIONAL PLANNING SERVICES RELATED TO 
CREATING A NEW COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR THE 
CITY OF BURNET: D. Vaughn 

 
Background: At the May 19, 2021 City Council Budget workshop, Council 

prioritized moving forward with the creation of a new 
Comprehensive Plan to assist with planning and development 
processes for future growth of the city. 

 
   Eight firms submitted qualifications.  On July 27, 2021, City 

Council appointed a Comprehensive Plan Committee to 
review and interview the firms.  On September 14, 2021, City 
Council selected the firm recommended by the Committee 
“Freese and Nicols, Inc.” and authorized the City Manager to 
negotiate a contract with the firm.  

 
Information: The City Manager, under the direction of the Committee 

negotiated a Professional Service Agreement for an amount 
not to exceed $252,368.00 for delivery of a Comprehensive 
Plan which includes the components that follow: 

 
• Land Use, Neighborhoods, Growth and Parks/Open 

Space Network; 
• Code Diagnostic and Critical Regulatory 

Amendments 
• Transportation and Mobility 
• Infrastructure  
• Economic Development and Fiscal Resilience 
• Downtown Preservation and Urban Design 

   



The process will include significant public engagement let by 
the consultant. Services include preparation of a final 
document and implementation plan. 
 

Fiscal Impact This resolution authorizes the expenditure of $252,368.00. 
 
Recommendation: Approve and adopt Resolution R2021-66 as presented. 
 
 
 
 
  



RESOLUTION NO. R2021-66 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BURNET, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A PROFESSION SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH 
THE FIRM FREESE AND NICHOLS TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL 
PLANNING SERVICES RELATED TO CREATING A NEW 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR THE CITY OF BURNET 

 
Whereas, at a City Council Budget workshop on May 19, 2021, City Council prioritized 
the need for a new City of Burnet Comprehensive Plan; and 

 
Whereas, on June 1, 2021, the city executed a Request for Qualifications, RFQ 2021-01 
Professional Planning Services for a Comprehensive Plan: and 

 
Whereas, at a regular session on July 27, 2021, City Council appointed a committee to 
facilitate the development of the Comprehensive Plan for the City; and 

 
Whereas, on September 14, 2021, City Council selected the committee’s 
recommendation of the firm Freese and Nichols, Inc., and authorized the City Manager 
to negotiation an agreement for professional planning services for a new City of Burnet 
Comprehensive Plan. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS, THAT:  
 
Section one.  Findings. The recitals to this Resolution are hereby adopted and 
incorporated herein for all purposes. 
 
Section two.  Approval. The professional services agreement with the firm Freese and 
Nichols, attached hereto is hereby approved. 
 
Section three.  Authorization.  The city manager is hereby authorized and directed to 
execute, on behalf of the city, a professional service agreement in substantial form as the 
attachment and take such other action and execute such other ancillary documents as 
may be reasonably necessary to facilitate the purpose of this resolution. 
 
Section four.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this resolution was passed was open to the public and that public notice 
of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 
 
Section five.  Effective Date. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
passage, and approval as prescribed by law. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 14th day of December, 2021.  

       



CITY OF BURNET, TEXAS 
 
  
       

      Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      
 
 
      
Kelly Dix, City Secretary 
 
Attachment”  Professional Services Agreement with Freese and Nichols, Inc. 











































































 
 

 
Development Services 

 
ITEM 4.17 
 
Habib Erkan Jr. 
Assistant City Manager 
512-715-3201 
herkan@cityofburnet.com 

 
Agenda Item Brief 

 
Meeting Date:  December 14, 2021 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss and consider action: FIRST READING OF AN 

ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF BURNET CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 118 (ENTITLED “ZONING”) FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF CLARIFYING THAT RESIDENTIAL AND 
MULTIFAMILY USES ARE NOT ALLOWED IN LIGHT 
COMMERCIAL - DISTRICT “C-1”; PROVIDING FOR 
PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER AND 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; PROVIDING FOR 
PUBLICATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. H. 
Erkan  

  
Background: City Council, by adoption of City Code Sec. 118-45, 

established the Light Commercial – District “C-1”.  Subsection 
118-45(a) reads as follows: 

 
(a) Purpose and permitted uses. This district allows a mix of commercial uses including, retail, 

office, light commercial, and similar uses excluding residential and multifamily. This 
district allows the retail sale of goods and products (in the following listed use areas) to 
which value has been added onsite, including those uses permitted in the "NC" 
neighborhood commercial district, sales of goods and services outside of the primary 
structure as customary with the uses specifically listed, and the following:  

 
   Please note that the first sentence of Sec. 110-45(a) states 

uses permitted in the district “[excludes] residential and 
multifamily”.  The second sentience in the subsection provides 
permitted uses in the district “[includes] those uses permitted 
in the NC neighborhood commercial district.  The list of uses 
permitted in the NC neighborhood commercial district 
exposes the conflict as follows: 

 
Sec. 118-44. Neighborhood commercial—District "NC". 

(a) This district allows for a variety of commercial uses that will serve as a transitional zone between 
residential and less intense commercial uses. Permitted uses will be those of a less intense 
nature that will aesthetically blend with the residential character of the area while permitting 
commercial enterprises. These uses will include accountants, barber or beauty shops, and the 
following:  

(1) Parks and playgrounds.  
(2) Community residential facilities with eight or fewer persons.  



(3) Day-care homes with 12 or fewer children.  
(4) Single-family dwellings.  
(5) Residential accessory buildings and uses.  
(6) Churches and temples.  
(7) Credit union offices.  
(8) Doctor or dental offices.  
(9) Bed and breakfast.  
(10) Fire stations.  
(11) Libraries.  
(12) Public and private schools and colleges.  
(13) Duplexes.  
(14) Triplex and four-plex multifamily.  
(15) Convents and monasteries.  
(16) Small insurance offices.  
(17) Lawyer's offices.  
(18) Optician or optometrist offices.  
(19) Public parking areas.  
(20) Real estate offices.  
(21) Uses as determined by the commission and the council which are closely related 

and similar to those listed and that are not likely to create any more offensive noise, 
vibration, dust, heat, smoke, odor, glare, or other objectionable influences than the 
minimum amount normally resulting from listed uses permitted.  

 
Information: This ordinance resolves the ambiguity in City Code Sec. 118-

45(a) by inserting a textural change to the code clarifying 
Council’s intent that in Light Commercial – District “C-1” "NC" 
neighborhood commercial district uses are allowed, except 
single family dwellings, residential accessory buildings and 
uses, duplex, triplex or fourplex or multifamily uses. 

  
Fiscal Impact No fiscal impact is anticipated. 
 
Recommendation: Approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2021-47 as 

presented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2021-47 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF BURNET CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 118 (ENTITLED “ZONING”) FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF CLARIFYING THAT RESIDENTIAL AND MULTIFAMILY 
USES ARE NOT ALLOWED IN LIGHT COMMERCIAL - DISTRICT “C-1”; 
PROVIDING FOR PENALTY; PROVIDING CUMULATIVE, REPEALER 
AND SEVERABILITY CLAUSES; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
WHEREAS, City Council, by adoption of City Code Sec. 118-44, established the 
Neighborhood Commercial – District “NC” to allow a variety of commercial uses than can 
serve as a transitional zone between residential and less intense commercial uses; and  
 
WHEREAS, single-family dwellings, residential accessory buildings and uses, duplexes, 
triplexes, quadplexes and multifamily uses (hereinafter residential and multifamily uses”) 
are allowed in the Neighborhood Commercial – District “NC”; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council, by adoption of City Code Sec. 118-45, established the Light 
Commercial – District “C-1”; and 
 
WHEREAS, the first sentence of City Code Sec. 118-45(a) provides City Council 
established the Light Commercial – District “C-1” “to allow a mix of commercial uses 
including, retail, office, light commercial, and similar uses excluding “residential and 
multifamily” (emphasis added); and   
 
WHEREAS, the second sentence of City Code Sec. 118-45(a) provides Light Commercial 
– District “C-1” “allows the retail sale of goods and products (in the following listed use 
areas) to which value has been added onsite, including those uses permitted in the 
"NC" neighborhood commercial district, sales of goods and services outside of the 
primary structure as customary with the uses specifically listed . . .” (emphasis added); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, “residential and multifamily” is allowed in the Neighborhood Commercial – 
District “NC” and ambiguity exists between the first and second sentence of City Code 
Sec. 118-45(a); and  
 
WHEREAS, City Council makes this amendment to resolve such ambiguity and to clarify 
Council’s intent that residential and multifamily uses are excluded from those uses 
permitted in the Light Commercial – District “C-1”; and 
 
WHEREAS, on the Planning and Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing to 
receive comments and testimony on the merits of the code amendments proposed by this 
ordinance; and  
 



WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the public hearing, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
made a recommendation to City Council as to the merits of the proposed code 
amendments; and 
WHEREAS, City Council conducted a public hearing; to receive comments and testimony 
on the merits of the proposed code amendments; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council, after due consideration of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommendation; the comments and testimony of public; and the 
recommendation of City staff; finds adoption of the proposed code amendments will 
promote the public health, safety, morals, and the general welfare. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BURNET, TEXAS, THAT:  
 
Section one.  Amendment.  The Code of Ordinances, Chapter 118 (entitled “Zoning”) 
Section 118-45 (entitled “Light Commercial – District ‘C-1’”) is hereby amended by adding 
the language that is underlined (underlined) to Section 118-45(a) as follows: 
 

(a) Purpose and permitted uses. This district allows a mix of commercial uses 
including, retail, office, light commercial, and similar uses excluding 
residential and multifamily. This district allows the retail sale of goods and 
products (in the following listed use areas) to which value has been added 
onsite, including those uses permitted in the "NC" neighborhood 
commercial district (except single family dwellings, residential accessory 
buildings and uses, duplex, triplex or fourplex or multifamily uses), sales of 
goods and services outside of the primary structure as customary with the 
uses specifically listed, and the following:  

Note to Editor:  Section 118-45(a) (1) through (12) are unaffected by this amendment. 
 
Section two.  Findings. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby 
found to be true, and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Ordinance for all 
purposes and are adopted as a part of the judgment and findings of the Council. 
 
Section three. Penalty.  A violation of this ordinance is unlawful and subject to City Code 
of Ordinances Sec. 1-6 (entitled “general penalty”).   
 
Section four.  Cumulative.  This ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of all 
ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, except where the provisions of this Ordinance are 
in direct conflict with the provisions of such Ordinances, in which event Section 5, (entitled 
“Repealer”) shall be controlling. 
 
Section five. Repealer.  All ordinances and codes, or parts thereof, which are in conflict 
or inconsistent with any provision of this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of 
such conflict, and the provisions of this Ordinance shall be and remain controlling as to 
the matters resolved herein. 
 



Section six.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof 
to any person or circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance 
and the application of such provision to other persons and circumstances shall 
nevertheless be valid, and the City hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been 
enacted without such invalid provision. 
 
Section seven. Compliance.  It is officially found, determined, and declared that: (i) the 
meeting at which this Ordinance is adopted was conducted in compliance with the Texas 
Open Meeting Act; and (ii) the City Secretary has published notice of this Ordinance as 
required by Section 3.14 of the City Charter. 
 
Section eight. Publication. The publishers of the City Code are authorized to amend 
said Code to reflect the changes adopted herein and to correct typographical errors and 
to format and number paragraphs to conform to the existing Code. 
 
Section nine. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall be effective upon the date of final 
adoption hereof and publication as required by law. 
 
Passed on first reading on the 14th day of December, 2021. 
 
Passed, Approved and Adopted on the 11th day of January, 2022. 
 
 
       CITY OF BURNET 
 

 
        

      Crista Goble Bromley, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kelly Dix, City Secretary  
 
 
 
 



Zoning Code 
Amendment
(Sec 118-45)
CITY COUNCIL DECEMBER 14, 
2021, REGULAR MEETING.  
PUBLIC HEARING



Sec 118-45(a)
•The section reads: “Purpose and permitted uses. This district allows a mix of commercial uses 
including, retail, office, light commercial, and similar uses excluding residential and multifamily. 
This district allows the retail sale of goods and products (in the following listed use areas) to which 
value has been added onsite, including those uses permitted in the "NC" neighborhood 
commercial district, sales of goods and services outside of the primary structure as customary 
with the uses specifically listed, and the following:” 

•Uses permitted in “NC” neighborhood commercial district includes: Single-family dwellings; 
Residential accessory buildings and uses; duplexes; triplexes; four-plexes and multifamily. 



Proposed amendment 
To clarify the specific language in Sec. 118-45(a) prevails over the list of NC uses referenced 
therein the amendment to the section adds the language that is underlined below:

Purpose and permitted uses. This district allows a mix of commercial uses including, retail, office, light 
commercial, and similar uses excluding residential and multifamily. This district allows the retail sale of 
goods and products (in the following listed use areas) to which value has been added onsite, including 
those uses permitted in the "NC" neighborhood commercial district (except single family dwellings, 
residential accessory buildings and uses, duplex, triplex or fourplex or multifamily uses), sales of goods 
and services outside of the primary structure as customary with the uses specifically listed, and the 
following:



This concludes staff’s 
report 
RECOMMEND OPEN PUBLIC HEARING


	2021-12-14 Regular Meeting Agenda
	CITY OF BURNET
	CRISTA GOBLE BROMLEY, MAYOR


	Item 2.1 21-11-16 RM Minutes
	Item 3.1 PH 1001 N Hill Future Land & Use Map
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 3.1 PH 1001 N Hill Future Land & Use Map
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5

	Item 3.2 PH Rezone 1001 N Hill 
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 3.2 PH Rezone 1001 N Hill 
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5

	Item 3.3 PH Ord. amendment to City Code Sec 118-45
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.1  FD-Ambulance Purchase
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.2  FD-SAFER Grant Submission
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.3 Board of Adjustments Appointment
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.4 Code Enforcement Abatement Program
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.5 Combo Unit Briefing
	Agenda Item Brief
	Background:                  In the 2021-2022 budget, Council approved $425,000 for purchase of a new combo unit. The current Vaccon (combo unit) is a 2009 model with 6967 hours. The Vaccon is a very valuable tool and is used daily in the Water/Wastew...
	Information:                  Five combo units were demonstrated with pricing from $420,000 to $449,000.  After reviewing all of the options, the Camel combo fits our needs the best and is the best combinations of pricing and options for what we need....


	Item 4.5 Combo Unit-attachment-Camel Burnet 072121 Cust Q
	Item 4.5 Combo Unit-Camel 1200EJ
	       City of Burnet�      Camel Combo Unit
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	�Questions?

	Item 4.5 Copy of City of Burnet Camel 1200
	Sheet1

	Item 4.6 TDHCA CDBG Community Resiliency-Grant Writer Award
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.7 TDHCA CDBG Community Resiliency-Engineering Architectural Services- Rejection
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.8 Award of Street Paving Bid
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.9 BCISD SRO Interlocal Agreement-First Amendment
	Agenda Item Brief
	Whereas, the District and City  entered into that certain Interlocal Agreement Between Burnet Consolidated Independent School District and City on June 28, 2021, (the “Agreement”); and
	(I) Amendments. The Agreement shall be amended as follows:
	(II) Binding. This First Amendment is binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties and their prospective successors and assigns.
	(III) Counterparts. This First Amendment may be executed and delivered in one or more counterparts. Transmission of this First Amendment by telecopy shall be deemed transmission of the original First Amendment for all purposes.
	(IV) Full Force and Effect. In all other respects, the Contract shall continue in full force and effect, unmodified except to the extent provided herein, and City and District hereby Ratify and Affirm the same.


	Item 4.10 Annexation Resolution-Tarbet Tract
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.11 1001 N Hill  Amendment-Future Land Use Map
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.12 Rezone 1001 N Hill 
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.12 Rezone 1001 N Hill 
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4

	Item 4.13 Final Plat The Crossings at 281
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.13 Final Plat The Crossings at 281
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4

	Item 4.14 HEB Easement Resolution
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.14 HEB water easement
	Item 4.15 OWBC LIHWAP Vendor Agreement-Water
	Agenda Item Brief
	Background: The City of Burnet currently has a Vendor agreement with OWBC that provides grant funding to assist customers with payment of their electric bill only. OWBC recently was notified that funding from the Texas Department of Housing and Commun...


	Item 4.15 OWBC Vendor Agreement-Water LIHWAP VENDER AGREEMENT
	Item 4.15 OWBC Vendor Agreement-Water
	Agenda Item Brief
	Background: The City of Burnet currently has a CEAP Vendor agreement with OWBC that provides grant funding to assist customers with payment of their electric bill.  OWBC recently secured funding from the Texas Deparment of Housing and Community Affair...
	City of Burnet residents who qualify for low income assistance can apply with OWBC for a grant to assist them with payment of their water bill.


	Item 4.16 Comp Plan-Freese & Nicols Professional Services Agreement
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.16 Comp Plan-Freese & Nicols Professional Services Agreement-attachment
	Item 4.17 Ord. amendment to City Code Sec 118-45 
	Agenda Item Brief

	Item 4.17 PP Ord. Amendment to City Code 118-45
	Zoning Code Amendment�(Sec 118-45) 
	Sec 118-45(a)
	Proposed amendment 
	This concludes staff’s report 




